A meeting of Croydon Parish Council meeting was held on Wednesday 15th January 2025 in the Reading Room at 7.30pm.

Apologies: Cllr Kindersley - may be able to attend later. Cllr Williams - did ring, missed the call.

Present: Mr Barnes, Mr Wheeler, Mr Buchanan, Ms Newland and the Clerk.

Minutes: of the December meeting were agreed and signed.

Declarations of Interest: None

Matters Arising and Village Issues:

Community Reports:

Carol Singing: The amount raised from carol singing round the village was £212-00, a splendid amount and thank you to all who took part and contributed. There was also a collection box at the village Christmas tree, the amount collected was not yet known

Christmas Bazaar: As previously, reported the final figure raised was £671-37 - thanks to all involved in the marvellous result.

Footpaths: Mr Wheeler has been very busy at work and has not had a chance to obtain an A3 copy of the map, to facilitate the clarity for the printing process.

Local Highways Improvement Application: Clerk has completed the application and sent it in, in time to meet the deadline.

Website: Mr Buchanan has suggested to Sanders and Jay that there should be an invoice for the work that they have already done, but as yet, nothing has been received. It is possible that this will all come in the invoice for March, which is for the next year's contract.

Six Free Trees: Delivery should be by the end of this month.

High Street sign: Clerk will try and get a photo of the remains of the High Street sign, and start the process for a replacement.

Cambridge Approaches: We are pleased to let you know that the petition from late May, which was frustratingly abruptly terminated after only a week by the announcement of the general election, is now live again!

The new petition, which this time will run unhindered for its full six months, has essentially the same wording as in May, calling on the government to pause East West Rail Co's plans for a full review. "We do not want the Bedford to Cambridge section of the Oxford to Cambridge Rail Link as described by East West Rail Co's Route Update Announcement and subsequent refinements including in the 2024 Non Statutory Consultation. We call for plans to be paused for a full transparent and independent review."

To go to the webpage to sign the new petition, click on the link:- <u>Pause plans for Bedford - Cambridge</u> rail link pending a full, independent review - Petitions:

Cambridge Approaches has also sent an open letter to the Secretary of State for Transport.

New Police and Crime Plan: Following a period of extensive consultation, Police and Crime Commissioner, Darryl Preston has launched a new Police and Crime Plan for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough. The Plan sets strategic policing objectives for the next three years and focuses on four key areas of priority under an overarching banner of safe communities.

A copy of the Plan is available on the Commissioner's website: <u>opcc-police-and-crime-plan---2025-2028-</u> <u>--final.pdf</u> and anyone requesting a printed copy can do so by contacting the Commissioner's office: <u>cambs-pcc@cambs.police.uk</u> or telephone 0300 333 3456.

SLCC Remote Attendance: SLCC is supporting a return to remote attendance, *Do you agree with the broad principle of granting local authorities powers to allow remote attendance at formal meetings? SLCC responded 'Yes'. Do you think there should be specific limitations on remote attendance? SLCC responded that 'There should be no limitations placed upon councils with regard to setting arrangements for remote attendance of council meetings, up to and including full remote attendance' and provided additional comments as below: Councils should be given the freedom locally and individually to select the most appropriate arrangements for themselves and their electorates. Councils should be required to have a formal policy on their use of remote attendance.*

Celebrate VE Day: Council has been sent information on how to celebrate VE Day - it is 80 years on 8th May 2025 since Victory in Europe was declared. Ms Newland will ask at the Café and other village social events, if there is any interest in doing this and ideas on how it could be done.

The Big Lunch 7-8 June 2025: Last year this was managed by the ladies who operate the café, with financial assistance from the Parish Council. It was well attended and enjoyed, so the ladies will be deciding whether they wish to undertake this again.

Hare Coursing: Council has been asked to raise the issue of hare coursing in the vicinity. This was discussed at the meeting and unfortunately, there is nothing the Council or any member of the public can do. If you see hare coursing taking place on a farm, **do not approach the participants**, these people are unpleasant criminals and vandals. If the event is happening live, dial 999. Otherwise, call 101 and ask to speak to wildlife crime officer. A notice to this effect will be put into the notice board in the village.

County Councillor Kindersley's written report to Council: Gamlingay Division Councillors Report – South Cambridgeshire District Council & Cambridgeshire County Council - January 22025

The Gamlingay Division comprises the Parishes of Abington Pigotts, Arrington, Barrington, Croydon, Gamlingay, Guilden Morden, Litlington, Hatley, Orwell, Shingay-cum-Wendy, Steeple Morden, Tadlow & Wimpole. This report is for all Division Parish Councils but please be aware that it will include items that may have little or no relevance to your particular Parish. Apologies in advance!

Your Councillors are always ready to help. Please do not hesitate to contact County Councillor Sebastian Kindersley on 01767 651982 or skindersley@hotmail.com or write to the Manor Barn, East Hatley, SG19 3JA District Councillor Bridget Smith (Gamlingay Ward, SCDC) is on 07729 836449 or <u>Cllr.BridgetSmith@scambs.gov.uk</u> and District Councillor

Elections: May 1st 2025 will see local elections for the Mayor of Cambridgeshire & Peterborough and for all 61 Divisions of Cambridgeshire County Council including the 13 Parishes of the Gamlingay Division. Sebastian says "It has been a tremendous privilege to represent local people and communities since 1999 but I have decided not to put my name forward again. If you would like to know more about the role; or are considering standing (for whatever party or none) I would be very happy to answers any queries or concerns you might have so please do feel free to get in touch."

Council Budget: Cambridgeshire County Council will set its budget on 11th February, with recommendations being considered in advance by the Strategy Resources & Performance Committee. Each year councils are required to set a balanced budget for the year ahead. This has become more difficult in recent years for several reasons including

• Growing demand for services and increasing complexity of health and care needs

Inflation

• Market failures in services such as provision for children in care, with high demand, insufficient supply, provider profiteering, and diminished council negotiating power.

The totality of the council's gross budget, including schools and services funded by specific grants, is expected to be over £1.1 billion for 2025-26. Of this, over half (£567 million) is proposed to be spent on children, education and families, and health and adult social care. In December, councillors were told that efficiencies and savings or additional income of £34 million would be needed to set a balanced budget for 2025-26, and considered draft proposals to achieve this. However, the coming five years show an overall funding gap of £132 million, of which £73 million is not yet addressed.

Social care reform-but not until 2028: The Government has promised to 'finally grasp the nettle on social care reform', with an independent commission due to begin work in April. Proposals on a stable system for the long-term funding of adult social care in England have been needed for years. But these are unlikely to be delivered before 2028 at the earliest, the government has confirmed. The proposed commission, chaired by Baroness Louise Casey, is not due to publish its final report until then. Meanwhile, councils and care providers across the country are saying this is far too long to wait for reform of vital social care services which are already on their knees.

Urgent and emergency care: The County Council's Adults & Health Committee received a report last month for their scrutiny on the performance of the NHS in urgent and emergency care. During 2024/25, performance has been below the planned trajectories submitted as part of the Integrated Care Board (ICB) operational plan, and below national standards. Two key national metrics for urgent and emergency care are that

• Emergency departments should see and treat a minimum of 78 per cent of patients within four hours of arriving in the department by the end of March 2025, and

• Patients categorised by the ambulance trust as Category 2 emergency, should have an ambulance response time within 30 minutes.

Both these targets remain behind plan, with the NHS under considerable pressure locally and nationally. **CAB grant for income maximisation:** The County Council's COSMIC committee has agreed a grant of £800,000 over two years to Citizens Advice in the county for income maximisation—working with residents to ensure they are in receipt of all financial assistance they are eligible for, and helping people out of poverty across Cambridgeshire by providing a long-term solution to financial hardship. Since income maximisation work began in 2023, 5,455 Cambridgeshire residents have accessed the service, resulting in an income gain of £3,887,844.

Non-recycled waste: A recent article in the Guardian newspaper reported that 87 per cent of Cambridgeshire's non-recyclable waste goes to landfill—second only to Essex. The council commented: "Our first priority is to reduce, re-use and to recycle as much as possible, as there are limited methods available to treat the waste that is left over in the short-medium term. "We are actively working with both our waste contractor, as well as Central Government, to try and find the best long-term solution to manage the county's waste." It is important to note that all mixed dry recycling collected from Cambridgeshire households and household recycling centres is recycled; all food and garden waste collected from households is composted; where legislation prohibits sending waste to landfill the council is in full compliance and where possible, black bag waste is treated using energy recovery or mechanical biological treatment, to divert as much as possible from landfill. The whole waste industry and legislative framework is currently going through a period of significant change. The council is awaiting detailed guidance from Government to inform its long-term waste strategy.

£10 million for road maintenance: The Government has announced how much each council area will receive for highways capital maintenance for 2025/26. For the Cambridgeshire & Peterborough area it's £10 million, with a quarter of that amount to be held back until the respective councils have proved they will meet certain—still to be announced—criteria. £10 million sounds a lot, but the Government may hold back twenty-five per cent of it; it includes Peterborough as well as Cambridgeshire and in Cambridgeshire alone the backlog of highways maintenance is around £600 million. Better than nothing, then, but a long way from what we need.

Speed cameras: A question to the Cambridgeshire County Council's Highways & Transport Committee about whether the council might consider the introduction of more speed cameras produced an interesting answer. In a discussion about Cambridgeshire's 'Vision Zero'—the aim to reduce to zero the number of people killed or seriously injured on our roads—a Councillor pointed out how few speed cameras there are in Cambridgeshire compared with, for example, Staffordshire. The answer from the road safety manager focused on the cost but also that another factor was that 'there have to be the appropriate available court slots to deal with anybody committing speeding offences'. Increasing enforcement could lead to people 'falling through the cracks' as there would simply not be space to 'push them through' the court system—and this was 'a bigger problem to solve' than the cost. It's yet another example of the collapse of the justice system under the previous government.

Meanwhile on the Combined Authority: The Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Combined Authority has decided not to increase the current bus fare cap of £2 per journey. This comes despite the decision of the Government nationally to increase the fare cap to £3, and will be welcomed by many bus passengers. The new Tiger on Demand bus service, which replaces the 'Ting' demand responsive service in the west of Huntingdonshire, will soon be coming to East Cambridgeshire, and opening up public transport opportunities for many village residents here.

NO-HGV ZONE?: We wrote last month canvassing opinion in Gamlingay and surrounding South Cambs villages about a no HGV Zone across the area - a plan currently being mooted by Central Beds Councillors - asking for your views. Responses have been few - less than 5 - most of which supported a ban. However, this is nothing like a mandate so we will continue to learn about what Central Beds propose but will ask for much stronger public feedback locally before supporting any changes.

Herbert Protocol: Have you heard of it? It's a scheme the Police support that can help find people with dementia if they go missing. It encourages family and friends to keep a document that will help officers in the event a loved one goes missing by collating key pieces of information, such as a physical description, familiar places, health details and an up-to-date photo. Feel free to share this post and help spread the word about this important scheme. Keeping a completed form means you don't have to try to remember the information when you are under stress if someone goes missing. And it saves time, so the Police can start the search sooner.

For more information or to download a Herbert Protocol form, visit the dedicated web page.

Local Government Organisation - Devolution White Paper: The government published the devolution white paper on 16 December. There are many proposals for Combined Authorities and Mayors. One of the most significant proposals is the creation of unitary authorities where there are currently two tier councils such as in our region. It is expected that newly created unitary authorities would have populations exceeding 500,000 but there may be exceptions. The rationale for creating unitary authorities is expected efficiency savings and service improvements. The paper cites a PWC County Councils Network commissioned report. It emphasises maintaining community-level engagement despite the larger size of unitary authorities compared with our local district and city councils. A phased implementation approach is proposed.

The paper also discusses changes to the way that councils are funded including a review of the business rates retention system. The rationale given by government for creating massive unitary authorities is expected efficiency savings (£2.3 billion which is not a lot when you look at the cost of social care and health) and service improvements. Many councils are challenging this and expressing grave concerns about losing what is truly local in Local Government. It means there will be far fewer councillors each responsible for much larger areas. The outcome is that many people will not know who their councillor is and councillors will no longer have the sort of close relationship with their communities which we currently enjoy.

Additionally local government reorganisation takes years and costs millions of pounds to implement. During that time we are likely to see councils having to focus their resources on restructuring and away from a lot of the discretionary things they currently do such as helping people struggling with the cost of living.

Campaign – Support for Young Carers: The Digital Poverty Alliance wants to make more people aware of the support on offer to equip young carers with digital access and skills. The Alliance is not reaching everyone who could benefit so we are sharing this information and asking parish councillors to reach out to people you're your communities who you think could be supported. More information is available on the Digital Poverty Alliance website.

Useful information - Flooding: SCDC's Scrutiny and Overview Committee recently discussed local drainage, flooding and mitigation of water pollution. One of the tasks to come out of that meeting was to provide South Cambridgeshire's parish and town councils with some helpful information and tools to support them – particularly when it comes to flooding.

Who is responsible for what and who should I contact?

It can be confusing and time-consuming to work out who is responsible for what when it comes to investigating and regulating flooding. The handy flowchart from Cambridgeshire County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority shows a clearly defined list of responsibilities and contact details on the website. The idea of this flowchart is to help you identify an issue relating to flooding and make contact with the appropriate organisation. We hope it will help with more isolated or local emergencies related to sewerage or surface water issues, which can present challenges for residents who don't know who to contact to find help.

Watercourse rights and responsibilities

If there is a watercourse on, next to or under a property you own, then you could be a Riparian Owner. The deeds for your property or land may tell you if this is the case. However, even if your deeds do not say you are responsible for an adjacent watercourse, the law will assume you are. Waiver of responsibility only applies where a title deed states specifically that you are not responsible. This means you are responsible for its maintenance to ensure it flows freely without obstruction, pollution or diversion, and you should also maintain your side of the riverbank. A map of all watercourses in Cambridgeshire is available on the County Council website. You can also read more about rights and responsibilities as a riparian owner.

North Lane Gamlingay

Please do not take cars from North Lane directly on to Drove Rd through the illegal access that has recently been created. The reason that this route was closed off is that it was extremely dangerous and we have already seen a number of tragic accidents close to where the access has been created in recent years.

Foul Drainage: Any parishes that are experiencing sewer drainage issues should email Anglian Water at their Public Affairs mailbox on <u>public.affairs@anglianwater.co.uk</u>

Frozen green waste bins: At this time of year there is a risk that the contents of green bins can freeze and stick to the inside, preventing the bins from being emptied properly. The council's web pages on bins and recycling contain some advice on how to minimise the risk of your bin freezing. Please circulate this

and keep residents informed to help minimise this frustrating problem. In January and February the green bins will be emptied once a month and from the beginning of March, they will be emptied fortnightly.

Net Zero Villages Grant Scheme: The scheme offering a total funding pot of £362,547 has been launched by South Cambridgeshire District Council to help rural communities become low carbon, more sustainable and more resilient to the effects of climate change. The initiative, funded by the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority, provides grants ranging from £20,000 to £100,000 to support transformative, community-led projects. With climate change at the forefront of global and local concerns, this grant scheme is designed to support the district's villages in taking meaningful steps towards reaching net zero and securing a more sustainable future.

The Net Zero Villages scheme will fund capital projects under the following themes:

• Energy Efficiency and Generation – Examples include installing insulation, LED lighting, solar panels, wind turbines, or battery storage for renewable energy.

• Low Carbon Transport – Initiatives such as community-run electric shuttle buses or other sustainable transport solutions.

• Nature-Based Solutions – Projects like green roofs, walls, or tree planting to cool and enhance community spaces.

Eligible projects must improve community assets and reduce carbon emissions, such as retrofitting village halls, enhancing public transport access, or implementing green infrastructure.

The grant is open to community groups, parish councils and rural businesses across South Cambridgeshire.

Council Tax increase for vacant properties: From April 2026, Council Tax will be doubled on longterm vacant properties in South Cambridgeshire as an incentive to bring the estimated 2600 empty properties in the district into use. Exemptions exist for properties that are on the market, subject to probate, or are under renovation. This approach has been used successfully by other councils to bring properties back into use and is expected to help address the high demand for housing in the district. It is estimated that the change will generate an additional £100,000 a year in income for South Cambridgeshire which will help support vital frontline services.

Help for people working with health problems:

The District Council has worked in partnership with neighbouring councils to launch a free programme called WorkWell, offering help to anyone struggling to find or keep a job due to health problems. This is a valuable initiative that seeks to improve the lives of those affected, to work with the wider community to understand and overcome the barriers involved, and to help boost our local economy.

Menopause friendly accreditation: South Cambridgeshire District Council has recently been independently accredited as a menopause friendly employer. This is an important step in the council's drive to ensure that it is an inclusive and supportive employer. For more information on the Menopause Friendly Accreditation, please visit <u>https://menopausefriendly.co.uk/</u>

Bridgit: The County Council has launched "Bridgit" - an Al-enabled carer support platform to provide a one-stop shop to help carers in Cambridgeshire in collaboration with Caring Together and alongside Peterborough City Council.

Bridgit has been crafted by carers and care experts, specifically for those who juggle busy and often stressful lives. Its user-friendly interface ensures easy navigation, even for those with limited digital skills.

How will Bridgit help Cambridgeshire's carers?

Comprehensive resources: Free wellbeing, employment, finance, and care advice and events.

Local and national support: Tailored support services and training opportunities.

Personalised Self-Care Plans: Customisable self-care plans to manage well-being.

24/7 Availability: All resources are available at any time of day, no registration required.

Bridgit automatically updates itself and streamlines all the information available to carers into one easy to use portal. It uses AI to create a bespoke experience for each user, meaning they don't get swamped with irrelevant information.

Bridgit can be used without having to create an account but there is an option for carers to sign up for fortnightly emails and there's also a carer support coach you can contact via WhatsApp. Carers can create their own self-help plan in seconds and find out how to get personal advice, find local events, support and services. Examples include information on carer assessments, care providers, emergency planning, the end of a caring role, managing work/life/carer balance, receiving carers allowance, cost of living, mental health support and much more. **UK-wide Day of Reflection:** A UK-wide Day of Reflection for the COVID-19 pandemic will take place on Sunday 9 March 2025. The COVID-19 Day of Reflection is an opportunity for communities across the UK to come together in reflection and commemoration for those who lost their lives and for everyone impacted by the pandemic. On the day itself and in the week before, the public will be able to mark the day in ways that feel most appropriate and fitting to them, both in person and online. More at https://dayofreflection.campaign.gov.uk/about/

South Cambs 4 Day Week: Plans for how people will be able to share their views on South Cambridgeshire District Council's services during a trial of a four-day week have been published. A report to be discussed at the Council's Scrutiny and Overview Committee sets out the proposals for an eight-week public consultation. Subject to final sign-off, there will be a full public consultation that anyone, anywhere can respond to – starting at 9am on Monday 27 January. The planned consultation would then run for eight weeks, closing at 11.59pm on Sunday 23 March.

The information gathered during the consultation will help District Councillors decide on the next steps for the four-day week at the Council. The consultation has been set up so that residents can share their views on how they have found Council services since January 2023 - when a trial of a four-day week began.

The Council announced plans to trial a four-day week - where people deliver 100% of their work, in around 80% of their hours, for 100% of their pay - to help address acute recruitment and retention issues.

Following a detailed and independent review of an initial three-month trial, the trial was extended for a further year and the Council has continued to work in this way as further information was awaited from Government.

During the Local Government Finance Settlement consultation for 2024/25, which was published in December 2023, the previous Government consulted on the potential of using financial levers, to come into force from April 2025, to discourage councils from adopting four-day weeks. Until there was more clarity on this, Cabinet members considered it not feasible for the Council to carry out a meaningful consultation and decide on next steps.

The new Government's Local Government Finance Settlement for 2025/26, which was published on 18 December last year, made no mention of any financial levers that were threatened by the previous Government. This means that the Council is now able to consult.

South Cambridgeshire District Council's Lead Cabinet Member for Resources, Cllr John Williams, said: "We have always made it very clear that we planned to give residents, businesses, parish and town councils and community groups the chance to share their views with us, on the impact on services they've received during our four-day week arrangements. We have not been able to do that up to this point because of threats made by the previous Government. With those threats lifted, we are now able to begin this process. Our approach is designed to ensure those who have used our services during the four-day week arrangements can quickly and easily share their views - though anyone, anywhere will be welcome to submit comments."

Cllr Mike Davey, Leader of Cambridge City Council, said: "We have supported the four-day week trial from the start, as South Cambridgeshire District Council works to find innovative solutions to the recruitment and retention challenges that are facing councils across the UK, with a knock-on impact on the cost of delivering services. We've always said that the most important factor for us is ensuring that services for residents continue to be delivered reliably and to a high standard, and we have been keeping a close eye on this throughout. It's right that residents are also invited to feedback on their experiences of Council services during the trial, and we'll be making sure that the consultation is well publicised to Cambridge residents once it's live, to ensure our residents voices are heard."

The idea of the four-day week at the Council is to help attract and keep talented colleagues in an incredibly competitive local employment market. It is also to help improve services by filling vacant posts permanently, rather than relying on more expensive agency staff. Regularly changing staff, or using agency staff to cover posts, is both costly and disruptive to services for residents.

Last summer, an independent report by two universities into the Council's performance during its four-day week trial was published. Of 24 key performance indicators monitored by the Council, analysis by the Universities of Cambridge and Salford found 22 improved or remained the same. The areas found to have improved included percentage of calls to the Council's Contact Centre answered, average number of weeks to determine householder planning applications and average number of days to process Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support changes.

There was also a financial assessment of the trial, which outlined a known full year cost saving of £371,500. This was mainly due to permanently filling 10 posts that were previously identified as 'hard to fill'. The financial saving reduced the Council's budget overspend because of not needing more expensive agency alternatives to fill the 10 posts.

The Council's opening hours have been maintained so it has been open for business just as it was before the trial – with longer opening hours on Wednesdays too.

Your Councillors are here to help you. Please do feel free to contact us with comments, questions, problems or complaints. We hope we can help but if we can't we are likely to know someone who can!

District Councillor's Report for The Mordens Ward SCDC - January 2025

4-day week consultation

The council will open its 4-day week consultation to the public on Monday 27 January at 9am. This will run for 8 weeks, so will close at midnight on Sunday 23 March. All residents are encouraged to participate in the consultation to tell the council how you feel about the 4-day week.

I strongly believe that increasing council tax whilst paying council staff not to work is deeply unfair. I have fought hard for all residents and all councillors to have a say in this – and two years after the 4-day week began, the time has finally come to tell the council your views on its 4 days' work for 5 days' pay scheme.

The consultation was scrutinised in a council meeting on 16 January, where councillors on both sides raised concerns, including the length of the consultation. Even if none of the initial questions about your experience with council services apply to you, I am strongly encouraging residents to fill out the 4-day week specific questions. I am disappointed that the consultation does not ask residents directly whether or not they are happy for the council to be doing this. The only question is whether you would be more likely to apply for a job there, which I find incredibly one-sided and shows a bias towards council staff as opposed to residents who ultimately are the ones funding this. There is, however, a free text box that I would encourage all to use to share their views, either for or against, and I will continue to seek clarification as to how this information will be analysed and whether or not the results of this consultation will be shared in a transparent manner.

4-day week referendum

In my alternative budget proposals, I have called for a referendum on the 4-day working week at the council. This is in response to the issues with the consultation that I've raised above and my lack of trust in the way that this consultation has been drafted and the lack of clarity as to how the information will be handled. I also believe there is no current mandate for what is happening as this was not in any party's manifesto and with local government reform it is unclear when the next opportunity residents will have to express their views at the ballot box.

I believe the public consultation document produced by the administration is inadequate, as it does not ask residents if they agree with the 4-day week – or if they are happy to pay for it. That is why I am calling for a referendum for South Cambridgeshire's residents to decide once and for all if they want to continue paying their council to be paid 5 days per week but only work 4 days.

Annual report to tenants and leaseholders

There are a number of things in this report that are concerning for our tenants and leaseholders within South Cambs. In several areas, South Cambs are bottom of the pile compared to other local authorities when it comes to the people that matter most – our residents. This report can be found on the council's website.

Improving Complaint Handling: Effective complaint handling is crucial for any organisation, particularly in public services like housing management. Recent survey results reveal that South Cambridgeshire's approach to managing complaints is falling behind compared to other organisations, with a satisfaction rate of just 29%. This puts the local authority among the lowest scorers, with the lowest satisfaction rate across other organisations being 28%.

Resident Involvement: When it comes to whether the landlord listens to tenants' views, only 54% of residents were satisfied. Unfortunately, when compared to similar organisations, South Cambridgeshire ranks among the lowest in tenant satisfaction related to the landlord's

responsiveness and follow-through on tenant feedback.

Local Government reorganisation

I am keeping a close eye on the government's local government reorganisation plans. It is my understanding that May elections will not be affected for South Cambridgeshire. However, the government is aiming for all two-tier areas (for example, district and county council areas) to become one unitary authority for their area alongside a mayor. These authorities would be responsible for transport, skills, housing and planning, economic development, climate change, health and wellbeing, and public safety.

All councils will receive an invite to submit proposals by spring and autumn 2025, ready for the first wave of new unitaries to be set up in line with the 2027 target. I am continuing to work with council officers to ensure everyone is up to speed on new updates.

Increased electric vehicle charger funding

Funding for electric vehicle chargers has increased from £5,000 to up to £12,000 per project. The grant is open to parish councils, community groups and charities for public EV chargers in car parks associated with community buildings and village halls.

I am pleased to see increased funding for these projects. I understand funding is unfortunately not guaranteed to be available into the next financial year, so if any local organisations are interested, please do apply as soon as you can on the council's website to benefit from this support.

£10k grants for community groups

I am pleased to see £10,000 in community grants be awarded to local voluntary and community groups, improving the quality of life for South Cambridgeshire's residents.

This includes support for The Liberation Cycle, a charity based in Steeple Morden which recommissions and revives bikes destined for landfill so that they can contribute to the mobility and wellbeing of those in need, as well as decarbonising travel in South Cambridgeshire. I am sure many of us are proud to support incredible charities like The Liberation Cycle to help those who need it in our community.

Planning problems with self-builds

Currently, the district council does not have a 5-year land supply for self-builds. This means that when determining these applications, there is a tilted balance with the presumption in favour of development being much higher than in normal applications. This means that development, for example out of the village framework, in a conservation area, or in an unsustainable location, that would normally be refused is likely to be given permission if self or custom-built housing. At the last Planning Committee meeting, I expressed concern and exasperation at how powerless we are to turn down applications that we know are completely wrong for our communities, simply because of the words 'self-build'. I think it's important for all to be aware of this situation and be able to respond to applications accordingly.

If a permission of this type is sought in your parish and you would like assistance, please do get in touch. While as a committee member I cannot give my personal view on the application, so as not to predetermine myself, I am able to help and support through the process and procedures that apply in these situations.

Christmas gifts for patients at Fulbourn Hospital

112 Christmas gifts were donated this year to the Fulbourn Hospital by staff and councillors here at South Cambs. Fulbourn Hospital cares for people with a wide range of conditions, many of whom spent Christmas in the hospital.

I am proud that our council is supporting vulnerable members of our community to help make Christmas special for everyone, including those who had to spend it away from their families. **Grants for community groups and parish councils**

If you are from a local community group or parish council, I am encouraging you to make the most of the council's available grant schemes. The GrantGrabber service helps you search for available grants – all in one place.

For further information on receiving a grant for a community project from the council, please visit the grants webpage.

Thank you for reading my report. If I can be of any assistance, please do get in touch. Cllr Heather Williams

SCDC The Mordens Ward Tel: 07885 774 775 Email: cllr.williamsh@scambs.gov.uk Twitter: @Cllr_H_Williams Facebook Page: Cllr Heather Williams Website: www.cllrheatherwilliams.co.uk

Correspondence:

Electoral Register: None received.

SCDC Corporate Plan Survey: Clerk wrote to SCDC as requested, and has not received a response to date, citing the face that, despite all the publicity, there were only 369 responses from the public, hardly a representative number considering the population of South Cambridgeshire.

SCDC and Devolution: "Earlier this week, the government published a white paper on plans to devolve more powers. The paper also included plans to mandate a move away from two tiers of local government so district and county councils will be replaced with one council providing the services that both councils currently do.

The government has said that there are four main reasons for this move to unitary authorities:

- Efficiency
- Resilience
- Increased sustainability
- Reducing workforce pressures

All two-tier areas and 'smaller or failing unitaries' will develop proposals. It will be a phased approach and councils in all areas are expected to work together to put forward plans. In general, it is expected that plans put forward should be for areas with a population of around 500,000, but there will be exceptions on a case-by-case basis.

In January SCDC will receive an invite from government to submit proposals. As Cambridgeshire and Peterborough has an elected Mayor in place we will be in the second tranche of submissions. This will be autumn 2025. In other areas where there is no mayor, the deadline will be March 2025."

NALC and Devolution: NALC welcomed the government's English Devolution White Paper published on 16th December 2024. Their immediate response emphasised the importance of nurturing neighbourhood governance to ensure its success.

Apparently, parish and town councils will play a critical role in devolution.

Police Budget Consultation: As he sets the budget for policing Cambridgeshire and Peterborough over the coming year, Police and Crime Commissioner, Darryl Preston has today (7th January) launched an online survey asking for views on police funding.

The survey is available online: <u>Have your say on police funding for 2025-2026</u> and is open until midnight on Monday 20th January.

Please share the link with local residents so they may respond. Anyone wishing to leave their views by telephone can call the office direct on 0300 333 3456.

Circulated to Councillors:-

SCDC Parish weekly agendas/e-bulletin ICS Newsletter 3C Building Control newsletter Cambs ACRE newsletter CPRE request for donations CCC Community energy plan Cambridgeshire Matters Capital maintenance prioritisation process Road works events Stapleford and Great Shelford Neighbourhood plan East-West Rail newsletter GCP Planning meeting

Subsequent receipts:

Fitness Rush: Fitness Rush Ltd is a mobile gym and has been grant funded by Cambridgeshire County Council. The service will be visiting Guilden Morden once a week for a few weeks and if you would like to benefit from it take a look at the website online or on the notice board.

https://www.fitnessrush.co.uk/our-locations/ This is part of the Care Together programme - for further details on the programme contact leneva.nwachukwu@cambridgeshire.gov.uk 01954286002

Harston Neighbourhood Plan: Comments are invited on this and may be made from now until 20 February 2025. You are encouraged to comment online via the consultation system:

https://oc2.greatercambridgeplanning.org/document/1320

However, if you are unable to comment online, please email us at

neighbourhood.planning@greatercambridgeplanning.org

Or write to: Planning Policy Team, South Cambridgeshire Hall, Cambourne Business Park, Cambourne, Cambridge, CB23 6EA. Please include name, and both postal and email addresses with any comments so you can be kept you informed on the progress of the Neighbourhood Plan.

Lithium-Ion batteries: It now does not look likely that the Government will include the Bill in their own Product Regulation. The Bill completes its passage in the Lords soon and it will then move to the Commons. So lobbying of MPs will then become even more important - there are over 500 councils supporting this Bill.

CPRE: Council has been asked to support the Sunshine Bill, which requests that all new-builds should have solar panels on the roofs. Council was happy to do this, and it will be actioned by the Clerk.

Finance:

Bank Statement: Balance at the end of December was £6027-55.

Bank Charges: All local councils have been required to change to Business bank accounts, A Community Account, which the council has held for many years, does not have any bank charges. With a Business Account, after a "free" year, Council will have to pay £8-50 a month for the account, plus any other charges which a business would pay, This is regardless of whether the account is for cheques or paperless.

Reading Room invoice: Clerk has booked further five months' rental of the Reading Room at a total of £80-00. The invoice for this was presented to Council and payment was proposed by Mr Wheeler, all in favour. A cheque for £80-00 was signed by the two signatories present at the meeting.

Website Hosting Reimbursement: After discussion it was agreed that the gentleman who has been inadvertently paying for the website hosting for at least the last four years should be given £70-00 to cover both the cost of the hosting and any inconvenience. This was proposed by Mr Wheeler, all in favour. A cheque for £70-00 was signed by the two signatories present at the meeting. Clerk will distribute the cheques to the appropriate recipients.

Precept figures: The monies required for the next financial year were discussed and finalised by Council. They also agreed to increase the Clerk's salary from £1850 to £2000 per year, for which the Clerk thanked them

CIEIR IIIAIIREU IIIEIII.	
Insurance	£500
Rent	£200
Clerk	£2000
Bank Charges	£150
Audit	£100
Subs	£90
Cemetery and Village	£1500
Books and Training	£100
Street Furniture	£500
Promoting Council/Website	£400
Section 137/Contingency	£2000
Reading Room	£350
Community Groups	£500

The total for the 2025-26 precept is £8390. This was proposed by Mr Wheeler and all were in favour. Clerk will send this to SCDC on the paperwork supplied by them.

Items for the next agenda:

Tiger on demand Councillors' attendance at meetings Parish Council or Parish Meeting?

Date of next meeting: Wednesday 19 February 2025 in the Reading Room at 7.30pm.

As there was no further business the Chairman thanked everyone for attending and declared the meeting closed at 8.39pm.

Signed

Date